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HISTORY OF ZION

by
A. M. WOODBURY

People coming into Zion Canyon, look up at the wonderful towers and
temples in admiration, and often wonder not only at the significance of

the name of the canyon, btut also of the eppellations of many of the unique

scenic features, The significence of these names is inseparably

connected with western history.

In order to tell the story properly, it is necessary to go back to
the time when our forefathers in the east were waging a war of independ-
ence. At thet time in the year 1776, a Spanish priest was roaming through
this region of Utah. Prior to this time, tne Spsniards had estasblished
missions and settlememts throughcut what is now ¥exico, New Mexico, Arisona
and California. Several ettempts had been made to find & route through
from Sants Fe, New Mexico to Monterey, Califorris, but most of these were
frustrated by the presence of the Grand Canyon of the Colorado, which had
first been discovered by Cardenas in 1540. Padre Escalante, knowing
of these attempts, and having viewed the Grend Canyon himself, in 1776
attempted with a small party, & porthern route around the canyon, hoping
thereby to reach Monterey. e proceeded northward into Colorado and
finding a wandering Indien, whose home was on what is now Utah Lezke,
he persuaded the Indian to guide him eastward. After crossing Grand and
Green Rivers, they finally found their way down to the shores of
Utah Lake where they were well received by the Indians to whom they

preached of Christianity.




These were the first white men, so far as we know, to enter what
12 now the State of Utah. After visiting several days with the Infians
sand promising te come again, Escalante took leave of them anrd startea
southwestward down through what was then a deseri regloa.

By this time, it was getiing late in the seascn, and #s it becane
apparent that it would be impossible to make to the coast end retur:n, &
division of opiniocn developed in the party, some desiring to retumrm,
others desiring to continue. The question was decided in tavor of
returning by casting lots. Instéad of retracing their steps the way
they had come, they turred southeastward and came out to the edge of the
denert somewhere near Cedar City where a monument to hils memory has been
erectad in the form of the up-to-date Escalante Hotel.

They then paesed southward along the route now traversed by the
road southward into Dixie and crossed the Virgin River in the vicinity
of Hurricane. He was thus the first white man to discover the river on
which Zion Canyon is located. In his diary, he mentions the sulphur
- springs that occur on the river between La Verkin and Hurricane. After
crossing the river there, he ient on southward into Arisona and then
turned eastward toward the Kaibab Forest. After a great many dif-
ficulties, and after being misdirected by the Indians, he finally
found his way across the Colorado River at what is now kxnown as the
Crossing of the Fathers, about twenty to thirty miles north of the TJtah-
Arigons line.; The stone stens that were cut to get their horses
down to the water's edge were recently discovered by chernor George

H. Dern of Utah and companions in 1925, on'a trip through that part of

the canyon.
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It appears that two other Spaniards entered Utah over the same

route as Escalante, one Mestas in 1805 and the other, Arse Gercia, in
1812-3, but so far as is knowmn their entry has no significance in the
history of Zion.

The next important character t> concern us here is Jedediah S. Smith,
an American fur trader, who with his partners, Subletted and Jackson,
meintained headguarters at Bear Lake in Northern Utah, These men had come
west with Ashiey on his sesond expedition in 1823 2nd having learned the
fur trsder game, they bought out Ashley's interests when he decided 0
retire.

Thegse young traders who had been trapping through Idaho, Wyoming and
northern Uteh decided to extend their operations southward and so fitted
out Spith with & party of about sixteen men with the intention of explor-
int the region to the gouth and west. 8mith left their cutpost on the
shore of Great Salt Lake on August 22, 1326. Going southward past Uten Lzke
{fron the best information available)$ it appears that he found the Sevier
River nnﬁVfélloved it up to its hesd, passing a few miles to the west of

Bryce Ca.—»n, but of course not seeing tne canyon.

* There is another theory supported by rather pleusible evidence that

Smith led hie brigade southwest from about Milford and iraveled by way of
Clover Velley Wash, Muddy River, etc. In fact, the Yurdy is thought to be the
hdams River. Wa. J. Snow,

This theory, however, is rather unteneble. See Dale, The Ashby-Smith
Explorations, page 187, quoting Smith's letter to Clerk. Smith ascended
Ashleys River(Sevier) finding the Sampatch (Sanpete) Indians. He passed
over & range of mountzins running southeast and northwest and struck a
river running southwest., ¥The country is mountzinous to easiy towards the west

there are sandy plains and detached rocky hills. - Here {about ten days
3.




march down it) the river turms to the southeast.® On page 303, Dale
publishes Gallatin's map of 1836, to which Smith 15 credited with hnving
contrituted. And in the region, under consideration, Smith must have leen
entirely responsible. He shows the Adans River heading very close to the
source of Ashleys River and flowing southwest to its turn and then shifting
ts 2 1ittle east of south, and occupying the reglon traversed by the Virgin
River. 1t, therefore, seems clearly evident that Smith's route lay along

-

the latter river and not the Xeadow Valley Wash, Nevada.ﬁ AM.W,

Passing over the divide a% the head of that r£vér, he caxe iato the
head of one fork of what is now the Virgin Kiver. He gave 1t the name of
Adams Piver in honar of the then president of the United States. Ie passed
on dowr the river to its junction with the Colorado, thence on down that
river us far as the Needles, irisona., After procuring supplies from the
Indians at this place, he went on westward across the ¥ojave Desert to
the Pacific coest near where Los ingeles now stands, reaching there in
late November.

He was detained here by the Spaniards until February 1827, when he
obtained permission to return the way he hac come. However, he hesitated
to fece again the dangere and hardships through which he had passed and
so determined to go farther north on his return trip, so after lesving the
settlemente, he turned northward through what is now interior California,
going about as far as the Stanislaus River, where he failed in an attempt
to cross the Sierra Nevada Mountsins, Leaving his party in the walleys below,
he again attempted & crossing and with two companions succeeded in April.

During Msy and June they crossed the hot dry deserts of Nevada and arrived

back at Bear Lake in July to keep his rendesvous with his partners.

®




Having left his party in California, it was nccessary for him to
return, so fitting out another expedition of about fifteen men, he re-
traced his route. It appears that as he was traversing the river that he
had previously named Adams, one of his men by the name of Thomas Virgin
was wounded by the Indians, and he, therefore, changed the neme to Virgin,

Going on down to the Needles, the Indians treacherously attached
his party while crossing the Colorado River and killed about ten of the
party and he lost most of his suprlies. With the remainder of his party,

throug~ extreme hardships, he crossed the Mojave Desert and rejoirned his

party in central California. After further troubles with the Spanish

aunthorities, he finglly made his way northward toward the Columbiz River.,

Upon reeching the Umpqua, his party was attached by the Indians in
his sbsence and two besides himself escaped. Thonmas Virgin wes one nf those
killed., Smith rezched the Columbia River in safety and throus® t-e h#lp
of the British, he obtained his furs fron the Indians and finally fourd
hie way bzck by wmay of the Columbia River,

Thus Smith was the first man to traverse the Virgin River, the first
to discover ithe southwest route Ir-2 Selt Lake to the Pacific, eud the
first o discover the western route from Salt Lake to the Pacific,

The next pecple of imporiunce are the Mormons, the first of whom
arrived in Salt lLake on July 24, 1847. For several years, these people
had been making preparations to move west from Illimois, and their leaders
had gathered information of the west from meny sources, trappers, travelers,
traders, explorers and government officers. A4lil literature available wag
anxiously scanned and discussions of the movemeni were of common occurrence

in meetings and newspapers, so that whor the movemeni was finzlly insururated,




the leaders were guite fully informed abcut the country to which they

were coming. And when, on that memorable dsy they arrived on the prenent
site of Salt Lake City, Brigham Young said without any hesitation whatevor
®T,is is the place,® which statement the Mormons have cherighed in tra-
dition ané songe.

They built & city there and started the construction of a témple.
Since it was the headquarters of their church they often referred tc the
place as Zion but as it grew, of course, it took on the name of Salt Lake
City. A4s more people ware continually arriving, Young, the grezt colon-
izer, sent colonists in &1l directions to setile un vre surrceunding country.
Be alsc had scouts out exploring the region.

Upon hearing of the warnm semi-tropicel climate existing &lone the Vir-
gin River, it cccurred to Young that cotion could be raised there. It will
be remembered that these people wefe a thoussend miles from a reilroad, and

trat they had to haul their supplies that they di2 not produce, from the

do

5

#tgsduri River, This, of course, was very expensive, and Young decided to

+

attempt the raising of cotton te help out in the clothing probiem.

Accordingly, colonists wers sent ito settle on the Virgin River. Young's
method was to select a balanced group of veople, including the different
types of workers, professional peonle and leaders in about the proportion
that would be needed in building & community, and send them out to mazke the
settlements. This was probably one of the greatest of his secrets of success
in colonization.

These settlers began arriving on the river in 125% and by 12861 most of
the settlements had been founded along its course. All land for farming had
to be irrigated and naturally the settlements were made where water could be
got out on to the tillable laad. Censegue ttly most of them were made along

the benks of the stream. The fi. st arrivals naturally selected the closest




and most accessible lend and the later comers had to push farther and
farther along the stream in zearch of suitable placas to settle.

By 1261, the settlers (cbout a dozen f&milies), had peustrated ae
far as ‘the present location of some of the Springdale flelds just below
the presernt site of the town of Springdele &t the mouth of Zicn Canyon.
These first settilerz included the following ne-es; Joseph Millet, Alma

*{1let, Em. Black snd his three sons, Willicm, George an? Joscrh, Aitert

Petty and family, Howard ¥hitlock , ™ ~um lorris and an ol2 man by the name

of Norton.

By this time &lso, other settlemeits had been made along the river st
St. George, Washington, Santa Clara, Toquerville, Grafton, Duncan's Retreat,
andi Rockville., They had alreedy tegun to raise cotton in the gsettlements
in the lower parts of the valley, and on this account they gave the region
the nane of Dixie, Utsh's Dixie. They constructed a cotton mwill at Fash-
ington sbout 1365 and 4t ran and manufactured cloth from then uniil the
late nineties when it was closed down. The ruins of the old red rock beild-
ing of the mill are still stending on the south side of the road just west
of the bridge in the litile town of Washington on the erstelile Arrowhead
trail, now the Zion Park Highway.

The settlers who had pemetrated as far as Springdale very naturally
continued exploration of the region around them, They were slready in a
very remarkzble section of tne canyon and coulé see more &nd mightier
cliffs and pinnacles beyond. Perhaps young Joseph Black little dreamed
what awaited him beyond when, one morning in the early summer of 1261, he
mounted his horse and set out up the river in quest of more or better farm-
‘ing iand,

Passing through the narrows just ebove ihe present park entrsnce, he




came out into the main court of the then un-named canyon where & clesar

strean of water meanderel its way between grassy bunks down through a

patural meadow. He found a strip of land that could be cultivated on each

aide of the river.

But more than that, he found those incomparable towers and temples and
those majestic cliffs that let the sunshine squeese I1n hetween thenm for e
short time Auring the middle of the day. And i1 seems that they thrilled his
aesthetic senses and that he realized the grandeur and beauly that ‘e was
the Tirst of the white race to behold, for when ne went back down to the
village below, he described t e wonders t:at he had gseen in such vlowing
teras thet the people dubbed t:e canyon "Josevh's Glory", half in derision
et nis foanciful iales.

But the peonle of those days had no time for relaxation suct. as sight-
seeing - it was all they could do te eke out a bare existence ¥ith a few
of the fundamental necessities of life. There wers nc truing, no telephonez
&nd no mail service and most traveling was donz by ox team. The thing that
interested the neovle in the village was the agricultural lan? in the canyon.

Hyrum Morris and Howard Whitlock decided to use some of ii. Undaunted by
the 4ifficulties of getting there, they hitche? two yoke of oxen on to the
hind wheels of a wagon and hangins & plow and a ¥grib box®™ on behind they
made their way up the canyon. It was iépossible tc go alongz the siream bed,
so they turned off on the west side about one quarter mile ahove the park
entrance and climbed the steep side hill to the sandy bench which the tele-
phone line now traverses. From this bench, they worked off into the canyon
that is now known as the Court of Patriarchs and down it to the main
canyon where they first put their olow into the soll and turned the firat

furrow of that virgin soil. Tt is reporie? thet they planted corn and raised




a crop that first year., Other people fellowed latvr and other lunﬁ wag
cultivated from that time forward.

Within the next two or three yesrs, rrobably about 1863, three setilers
went into the canyon to live, One of them, Willianm Heaps by name, was & regere
ter from Johnson's srmv, no doubt seeking isolatién, and at that tire, e un-
doubtedly found an idezl place. He tuilt & little roch cabin on the west
side of the river &t the mouth of Emerald Pool Canyon (formerly ¥nown as
jleaps Canyon) near a point where some large cottonwood trees &re now stancing,

{5 two companions, Ismac Dehunnin &nd George Folfe, slthou;h not de-
serters from &n army were typiczl western renegzdes. They were a poor sort
of Yormons, and though rought old characters, were very religious witnal.

Behunnin built tvo log cebins across the river from Heaps, one czbin stand-

ing just beside the road abtout one gquarter mile sbove the Lodge, the otaer

one stahding sbout 100 yards to the west, in what is now & dry-course of
the rivér bed. Rolfe went a little farther upstream, and erected one cebin
beside the road sbout one half mile above the Lodge near the bend in the
rozd and another oﬁe at the place where the public camp ground now stands,
juat between the comfort stutlon and the road.

These people raised corn &nd tobacco, & little garden truck and certain
other crops, kept a few livestock around their places and thus eked out an
existence among their sesthetic sui~oundings. But with all their hardships,
it seems that they realized tie wonders and beauties ¢f the canyon walls.

It is related that Behunnin used to sit in his yard of an eveninz and look
up st the fowers and templeg on éve:y side. They appealed to him as symbolic
of the divine and he used to say 'Here,we have nztural temples. Ve can
worship as we please®. He was nentally raking comparison with Salt Leke

wher they were building a temple and which was usually referred to &s Zion,




- Continuing he soliloquised that "This is as much Iilon as Salt Lake, we'll

call this Little Zion.® 4nd Little Zion the canyon came to b known.

It 18 reported that, at cne time & fa2w years later, Brigham Young
came to Springdale to see a piece of lan? that he had there and the people
told him in glowing terms of the wonderful scenes in Little Zion an’ was
| about to visit the place. However, he inqﬁired who lived up there a2d being
told that these three old renegades were the only onesg, -e said:s ®No, it's
not Zion. ZiSn is the place where the pure in heert dwell,® and he refused

to go visit the place. Therecfter meny of the peorle hypercritieally re-

to it as ®Not Zion,®

Ei{%;ngthe next few years, livestock increase? greatly in numbers &nd
botn she%%yand catile came to be gresed in larger numbers both ir the canyon
and on_t#éymountains sbove., With the t:amping of trails throug™ tae vegota-

due to such gresing, they way was opened up by which the rain, when {t i

1, ¢ould run down the trails, pick up loose particles of sand and thus
tools with which to cut out the grass and roots alon: the streat channel.
lly the time came when & heavy storm brought enough sand and grovel w' th

}Qﬁdb enormous cutting and it weshed out its bed through the grassy bunks

ift the 0ld mesdow high and dry. 4nd the evil conditions have been ex-
rlﬁgd durin- & large part of the intervening time since then and thre
rivér’iéskcontinued to wagh &t its banks and bted scourlng an? enlarging, and
along ‘ﬁg'cr?*se from Zion to its junction with the Coloradc, has washed &way
thoulané; of acres of fertile land - damege that can never be repsired.

It is reported that in those days beaver vwere plentiful &longz tne strea-s,
 but they have practically disappeared. |

Along ebout 1865; Indian troubles developed in the regionaznd the ~eople
‘froew Springdale an? Shonesburz all move? down to Rockville for better protec-

tion. There is no evidence to indicate that any of thez went up into Zion

10




Canyon for protecﬁion.‘ For the next several yeara, the people ‘had %o

iband together and ahenever they went into the Iields to. work, they eibher'
] , | went in vroups or took precautions of safetv. :
, A”ter the subsxdence ¢i the Indian menace, plans(for rensettling
Sprlngdale (and Shonesburg} developed. In 1874, a new ditch was taken

t of the river above the old settlement of Springdale and in 1875, the

kltown was settled in its present location.
At about this time also, an attempt was mede to establisn what way
called the United Order, a soccialistic commnity in which theoretically
each was to share alike. Fach oné joining the order had to turn ovér

all property to the community. The idea seems to have appealed to the

three settlers in-Zion Canyon. They joined the order and turned over
their rights in the canyon. But after a short time they became dissate
isfied, disappointed at tie conditions thet developed and 50 they'wnh;

‘drew. They were pald in lvvestocc and other goods for thelr proyerty in

Zion and they moved away. Upon the break—up of the order, soon after this,

"thefproperty in Zion was allotted to Springdale people. During the inter-

‘ véning years, different pleces of property paaaed from one hand to another, un-

il qu9 when the area was w:thdrawn ag a National Monumen®, whén, because

'ithe le:'x'a had never becn surveyed and 1o tltles estubllshed, the people haé to B

: 'giva up the use of the Land. : SN » 5
' <Dur1ne the period of use of the land, people at dlffcrent times/and o '

v ;V f places, planted out orchards and to this day t%ere are remnants of some
" of these orcharda left. Opnosmte the lodge, on the. '13;&1&" left between

"the oxd meander of the rﬂver bed and the present nosmt*or of the river 19 




" "s111 & peach ‘orchard thet has run wild but still bears deliclous fruit if

yuu‘ can bedt the squirrels to it. Another peach tree ‘stin stinds heside

the road about balf way between the Lodge and the public camp. And st;llyqn_,

other’ one off to-the west of the public camp.
The land where the public camp is located was farmed by 0. D. Gi ffdrd
afier Rolfe =old out in 1875 and‘the trees that now'cover‘the camstiteihave

" mostly grown up since that tine. During the time that he #as farming there,

the red arch fell out and built tp the sandy point or slope underneéth.,’Thia E

was about 1880 or 1881. ¥r. Gifford was not there at the time of the fall, bﬁt
the next g&v when he came from town to work, he found a Jlarge rogk had rqllgg
down into his cornfield. Prior to the fall, a clump of pines stood in the
cove beneath, but the messive amount of rock that came down ground:mostvof‘

them to splinters, and the rock ltaela seems to have been mostly cruahed and

ground to sand and small piecea. There are practically no large rocks lnft '

to tell the story.
William Russe; of Grafton relates that he well remembers rﬂdiﬁg the cul—
tivator horse up and down the corn rows in fromt of wherc the Lodge now stands.
“Top' Stout of Hurricane, Utah relates how, about 1893, that he and two

‘-cOmoanxes seeking & way to pet on top of the east rim of Zion, went up the :

‘.'canyon to the Big Ben and climbed afoot up to the top over the route that was

later developed into the first sast rim trail.‘ This trail vas firat opened up
in 1896 by the stockmen so they could trail cattie up and down.

A few years. later than this, a young 1nventive genius by the name of

'iAFiannigan ccnceived the 1dea of installing & W1re conveyor to let lumber doun '

SR,

i ﬂ“"frcm tha tap of the mountamn to the valley floor, and in 1900, an unuless
“«,‘baling wire cable runnlng around drums at both ends was installed ‘and proved

so successful ‘that .a few years late~, about 1906 the baling wire was raplaced

:iﬂ‘by a three eighths inch wire cable, which is still in operation and may be seen ?

N —




"atbwb£iiféday ﬁponVSpeciél occ;siénszvﬁpn 1um$e§~isl£eihé}ic;er;d; ‘
o During Major Powellts second memorable trip through the Grﬂnd Ganyon of o
: f:the Colorado Rivsr in 1872, he heard of Zion Canyon and took: occasion to
o go over and visit ite

,ﬁajqr'Powell“gave the canyon & new neme which '#sksupégsed\to bé au£h~'
entic and of course had the sanction of the government behind it. Qevéailed
it the Mukuntuweap (Moo-koon!-to-weep) and applied the same neme to tﬁaﬁ fork
‘of the Virgin River flowing through it. To the east fork of the river a;;a, the ,
gimilarly wonderful canyon through which it flows, he gave the name of Parumi-
wéap."The origin of these names is in doubt.‘ One sfory or legend has it tﬁat
an Indian that the Whites called Muggins had a small garden plot in the mouth
of the canyon, and the Indxans called it Mukuts (Muggiis) tuweap (farm),
megning the canyon where Muggina! farm was located.

But it is doubtful if this is correct in view of anothor legend which holds
that Mvkunta refers to the Great Spirit and weap,refers to the land of or place
‘where. Thﬁs the meaning would be the place where the Great Spiriﬁ dwells. fhis
‘ is ihkhgrmqny with the belief of the Indians that the Great Spirit dwelt on the
West Tempds, the prominent tablet which Captain Button so’glowingly'described
as in the‘foregrouﬁd, It is situated directly west of Spr¢ngdale, and *he In~

| dians implicltly obeyed a superstltion that they held that they must not etay

'_141n the canyon above that p01nt after dark. The Springdale people attest the

A'ﬂfact that in the egrly days they have often seen belated Indians hnrry1ng out
of -the Canyon so as not to be caaght there'after dark. And after a. succeasful

‘ iday's hunt in the canyon abovo, they often dropped a pieee of venison as thqy

“»,passed hy the temple in nropit*ation to the Great Spirit.

‘The name Mukuntuweap, however, was not the name by. whlch the Indians Jnew

t.V They called it Ioogoon, which means. the arrow quiver, that is you must




ﬁcme out the vay you go in; there is only one opening to the canyon at %,“ﬂ.»'S

"‘the moutm ' | e L
Q And this name Mukuntuweap never proved popular with ’che local poopl,g. )
'In faci, it was scarcely known except on certain maps &nd was regarded as |
an obsolete term until the area was withdrawn on July 31, 1909 e.s the
%ukuntuweap National HMonument. It was so unpopular,‘however, that wheﬁﬁ\
the status was changed to that of a Nationsl Park on Hov. 19, 1919, Congrees
Baw fit to change the name to Zion National Park. At the time the area

was withdram as & national monument, there ware several p¢eces of farmingﬁ

| land scattered up and down the canyon that were actuall; being farmed

and there were so many cattle being grased in the canyon that the

ground was practically bare of small growth between the larger trees and
brush. It was a cage of very bad ovezgrazing.

Naturally, stock were excluded from grazing in the canmyon soon after
-"it was withdram and during the succeeding years, it has had & chance to
recuperate‘and the wonderful rec;udescense of growth since thet time is
er:y interestinb to study. o

The’ first settlers to penetrate the canyon had to pick their ugy
',between vertlcal cliffs and over exceedingly steep and rock st”ewn slopes;f

‘ As they began to cultivate the land so that they made more or less regu-

’1‘Tﬂ1ar trips back and forth it became necessa:y to build roads.; The firet

'entrance thh the oxen and wagon wheels went vie- the west sxﬁe of the e

‘ riv»r, but wnen they attemnted to pic« out a- road for more or *ess 1nter~~

, .f; mittant tnaﬂﬂio, a zuute waa neleabea othhe suaz alda Ana 1n naaau to gew, ‘

'°:‘;past the “lower“~narrows just above the park entrance, they climbed the
Qf'”rought/slope about half way up to the loot of the higher cliffs. Remanants
fOf this old road -ean still be found in places where it has not been obltter-'

ted bv ‘the ravages of nature."




';  This route had been selected because 1t was the eaaiest route bhat

e icculd be found. It was, however, of very poor grade and was: hard t@ &vavel
jnce 1t climbed up and 80Wn the mountainside 80 much.‘ So another rdute

was selected up the river bed, crossing and recrossing the river’in a.

: good many places.

The grade of the new rou+e was much better than the 0ld but it in-
voived much heavier construction work. .In those days (about 1872) they
had no explosives to work with and if boulders obstructed the way that
were too big to move outl of theAway, it did not stop canstructibn’work;
no, not for those undaurted pioneers. They simply dug & hole underneath
and let the rock roll into it and: bury itgelf.,

| , In const ructing this road, they encountered a huge boulder on the
' ateeo 81de hill in such & position that they could,not digress with tha

" road. It was absolutely necessary to move the rocke. Three men set to
‘.jork to dig the hole undernesth the lower side.  4s they progressed with
the work, they found the work herd and the day was hot. A8 they.neared

the’ end of the job, they sat down in the cool shade of the rock to rest. ‘;

George Aye*s stretched hlmself out in the bottom of the hole with a<
companion sltting on each sice. Some one from above shouted down "The oldyi

" rock looks like it is about resdy to go. What would you do 1f 1t should |
come?a | ' ' '

Both of the companions stated tﬁat they would sure be getting cut of

' there if 1t gavé signs of moving
?ot so wlth Ayers. He saidx 'I wouldn't even move, for I couldn't

:'iget out in time if I dia.m ;
o He hardly finished when a warning shout gave the 51gna1 that the

rock was moving. The two partners responded to the vnrning and jumped to .

o afety hb,Ayers was true to hie word.




The roa.a vas a.ftemrd ﬁnisbed and ‘served for t,hrg traffic in amd s

i out of the Park until “the Park Service, about l920~4, eonstructed ths

well graded road now traversing the canyon. "
In 1880, Captain Dutton of ‘the U 8. Geol. Survey, visited the region

and was so enthralled by the sqenic splendors that he Wrote ™% in

an’instanf, there flashed before us a scene ne&er to 53 fbrgotten. In |

4‘§oming time it will, I believe, tske rank vith‘a‘vexy émall number of;

kspect&cles each of which will, in its an’way,'be regarded as the most

equisiéekof itsykind which the world discloses. The scene before ua wasg

* the Templesg and Towérs of the Virgin.

"Across ihe further foreground of the éicture stretches the innerk
'Cahyon of the Virgin, about 700 feet in depth and here uf considerable
'width, Its bottom is for the most part unseen, but in'ohe place 1s
disclosed by & turn in its course, showing the vivid green of vegetation.
Across’ the canyon #* # % gtands the central and ommanding object of
 'vthe plcture,,the western temple, rising 4000 feet above the river; *¥§4’

~Yet it was only the central object of a mighty throng of structures wrought
»’up to the’s&me exalted style and filling up the entire panoramé.f***gThé}_°’;
etfect is is much like that which the architect of theVMiian Cathedral appegrs
4o have designed, though here it is vividly suggested rather than f§11y
i réalized, ##% A row of towers half & mile high is quarried out of the . 

‘“Tbalisade,‘and‘stands well sdvanced fromlits face; There i° an eloquence?

A~[;1n thei* forms which stirs the 1maginatxon with a singular power and

’ k;ndles in the mind of the dullest observer 8 glowing response.
The name of #Zion™ seems singularly appropriate for the canyon ao e

ﬂlntricately adorned with ‘the peaks and pinnacles inseparably connected




wain the mind with towers and templea.' AB the old cionccr Béhunnin aptly
,fi remarked l'Here we have natural temples., We can worahip an e ple&a@.
A‘And this veny freedom of worahip is almost compelling. th can- look up
&t the magnificence &nd negnitude of these natural temples, 8o adorned

‘ wlth nature° v1v1d coloring, w1thout feeling that axe ang. 1nspiration,.55c
s0 akzn tO'worship,rthat comes from a realization of the mastcr forcca

- that have worked through the enduring ages to accomplish such é Narvele
cus thing. With this setting, it is no chder ‘thet the name "Zion®

gurvived the harsher and inappropriete name of Mukuntuweap,

And 1t is no wonder that the thousands of people who visit the cane
yon are imbued with:thé feeling. It was probably under this sﬂell that
the canyon weavezs into the lives that vis b it, that the fiery preacher

- Prederick Vining Fischer, went up and down the canyon in 1913 bestosing
names rlght and left in harmony with the great idea, Other n&mes also
have creot in, but most of those that have survived are in keeping with
the Spirit of the Canyon.

Let us look &t & few of the nemes that harbor this spirit. ‘ First,
 we have the Ratchman {on the eust near - Sprlnodale), next the Alisr of
Sacriflce (a flat topped pinnacle on the west, the white walls streaked
with the red stains from the altar), nczt tﬂe Sentinel (also on’ the west);ffA

‘then the Three Patriarchs and thelr court (a side c&nyon com*nv frOm th JN‘

’west), the Temple of the Sun (a peak on the east whose summit catches j*ﬁ7

;{the flrst rays of the sun in tne morning and reflects the 1ast glow in

‘kt;the evening), gnd then the main court of the canyon leadlnc up to the~
"5*Great White Throne (the central theme of the canyon) at the foot of
rpwnlch, e find the Great rganubeside the Angel's Landlng. Beyond these,_,

- ‘at the end of the road, we find the Temple of Sinawava (2 circular i 5*;;

£ ’amphltheatre with an anar in the center) and the kezzd £ the ,trail; |
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Dale,” The Ashley and Smith Explorationé.‘«

Chiﬁienden, 'Ihe‘American Fur Trade..' y
Dellénbaugh, F.“S.,, The Romance of the Coléradé ﬁiver;
Dutton, C. E., Physical Geology of the Grand Canyon District.
Gifford, O. D., Personal interview. S :
Gifford, F. D., ™ LA
flarris, Desn, The Catholic Church in Utsh,
Russell, Wm., Personal interview, |
Palmer, Wm., J n
Stout, "Top, » o
Tawaites, Farly Western Travels.

Park rangers and numerous others.
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Samuel Nittwer of Santa Clara told me of some of his ezperienoaa‘
in early daya. He came with his father, Christian Wittwer, o Santa e
AClara with the Swies migretion in 1860 or 186l. Some time after, they "
moved to Harmony and when he was 17, he made a trip back across the plains
to get immigrants in 1864. Soon after returning, his father and family
 moved to Springdale {about 1865 or 1866) and they $o0k up & piece of

land in Zion just above Behunnin. He does not recall Heups or Rolfe,

"ﬁ“but thinks probably trat Rolfe took the farm they left when they

moved away., They had a hard time clearing land for cultivation.

He states that the river ¥lowed through a narrow meandering'chanhel

. through the timber, brush and grass and that mﬁch of the valley bottom

. was timbered (ash, boxelder, bottonwobd, squawbush and rosebushes)
‘Q§n&‘that it was such hard work to clear out the brush so that they could
.~cﬁltivat» and the returns were so‘*eagré that#they‘got’discoufaged ana f’f;k
only st&yed a year or two at Springdale and spent only one summer in-
Ziop. | o

’ He helped to build the first wagon road into Zion up the canyonegy‘"
, Prior to that the cart road t*aversed the svde hill on the east. He

" was standino beside ‘the big rock when George Ayers was killed. ‘His

" ;Avers1on of the story was 4o the ef?ect that after the hole vas dug

under thefedge of the rock, that Ayers and Taylor got’ln the~shade of '

,fg the rock to rest. He (Wittwer) remarked that it wag quite ‘a danEErousii :

“*fJ‘rock, and they had better be careful. Taylor responded 1o the sugges—ﬁrfka

tion by squatting down\on his feet (bending his kneea and 51tting on e

’?hls heels) ready to move at the slightest warning, but Ayers saldx

. ,-x ot




onl - iﬁ;é Safevenough; an'sat‘dcin“in'thé‘hdié. -As £h3vrbck gévh'
way, Taylor sprange out being scraped by the rock and *garing off thq
" skin of his shoulder. Ayers was maShed up pretty bad, it mashed his -
- head and‘broke‘his'arm in two or three places and killed him~instant1y.
“This happened in a narrow part of the canyon where the sides were quite :l
steep but not ledgy. :
About the time of the Indiaﬁ raid when Whitmore and McIntyre weré
¥illed, he and two others were sent out to Short Creek (or somewhere
in thet region) to act as guards to watch for Indian signs and keep
7 iwatch ovef the cattle. He speant about three weeks there.
Soon after this they moved away and went to Ssnta Clara. He thinks
this must have been about 1867 or 1848, and he states that after he
left, most of the people from Springdale, Grafton, Duncén’s Rétreat’and
possibly Virgin moved into Rockvillie on account of the Indien scare.
He also states that at that time there was much fertile land all

up and down the river from Grafton down %o Duncan's and that the floods

that cane and tore up,these;fertile lands were later than the time

(signed) A. M. Woodbury

sﬁ‘}St. George, Utah : ) ~ T \«” T _15”9534 ~'~“V
| March 25,1927 ; N T :




